
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

CABINET MEMBER SIGNING 
 

Thursday, 15th March, 2018, 2.30 pm - Civic Centre, High Road, 
Wood Green, N22 8LE 
 
Members: Councillor Claire Kober, Leader of the Council 
 
 
Quorum: 1 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note that this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for 
live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone 
attending the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask 
members of the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to 
include the public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting 
should be aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or 
recorded by others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating 
in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral 
protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or 
reported on.   

 
By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings. 
 
The chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. URGENT BUSINESS   
 
The Leader/Cabinet Member will advise of any items they have decided to 
take as urgent business.  
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 



 

(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

4. TAILORING ACADEMY/FASHION ENTER GOOD GROWTH FUNDING  
(PAGES 1 - 10) 
 

5. REALLOCATION OF FUNDS AGREED BY CABINET IN 2012 TO ENABLE 
URGENT HIGHWAYS IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED AHEAD OF THE 
OPENING OF THE NEW THFC STADIUM.  (PAGES 11 - 18) 
 

6. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS   
 
As per item 2 
 
 

 
Ayshe Simsek 
Committees Manager 
Tel –0208 489 2929 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 
 
Wednesday, 07 March 2018 
 



 

Page 1 of 10  

 
 
 
Report for: Leader‟s Decision                  

15 March 2018 
  

 
Title: Tailoring Academy/Fashion Enter Good Growth Funding 
 
Report  
Authorised by 

Helen Fisher, Interim Strategic Director of Regeneration, 
Planning & Development 

 
Lead Officers: Steve Carr, Interim Assistant Director of Economic 

Development and Growth 

 
Ward(s) affected       All Report for Key/  

Non Key Decision: Key 
 

 
1.  The Issue Under Consideration 

 
1.1 Haringey Council (LBH) has submitted a bid for £430,000 of funding from the 

Greater London Authority (GLA) Good Growth Fund (GGF) in order support the 
capital costs of the propsed Tailoring Academy for London which is to be 
located in the borough.  A funding decision from the GLA is in early March and 
the GLA requires the Council to enter into a funding agreement with it before 
the end of March.  Should the Council be successful, the Council will match the 
GLA GGF with the Council‟s own New Homes Bonus funding of £225,000, 
which is already held by the Council.  The total funding available for the Council 
to invest in the capital cost of the Tailoring Academy would therefore allocate to 
the Tailoring Academy would be £655,000.   
 

1.2 This paper seeks authority to conclude the funding arrangements with the GLA, 
sets out the justifications for the investment in the borough‟s clothing industry 
and seeks a delegation to officers to finalise the terms of the agreement with 
the GLA and Fashion Enter Limited (Fashion Enter), the Council‟s preferred 
partner body for clothing training in the borough, subject to confirmation of 
terms and compliance with European state aid requirements. 

1.2 The Tailoring Academy project will involve the refurbishment by Fashion Enter 
and its contractors of a 1,050 square metre industrial unit at Crusader Estate, 
Hermitage Road, Seven Sisters, Haringey, into an advanced clothing 
manufacturing and training facility.  This will provide specialist skills and job 
training in the clothing manufacturing and fashion sector to meet industry 
demand. As part of this training environment, the Tailoring Academy will 
support the manufacture of mid-end and high-end tailored clothing for major 
retailers and fashion brands.  The project will result in the training of over 2,000 
people, 100 higher level apprenticeships with Savile Row Tailors and 50 direct 
new jobs, as well as encourage further job creation and retention in the clothing 
sector in North London. 

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 

Page 2 of 10  

 1.4 A number of leading national and international clothing retailers and fashion 
brands, as well as industry bodies, are partners in the Tailoring Academy 
project, and between them they have pledged £550,000 to meet the required 
revenue funding of the project, as well as placing individual training contracts.  
This revenue support will complement the Council‟s capital funding.  Key private 
sector partners include Marks & Spencer, ASOS, Jaeger, Telestia and a 
number of iconic Savile Row Tailors, including Gieves & Hawkes of No1 Savile 
Row.  A number of clothing and fashion industry bodies including UK Fashion & 
Textiles, London College of Fashion and London Fashion Council are 
supporting the project. 

 
1.5 The estimated capital cost of the Tailoring Academy premises refurbishment 

and equipment installation at Crusader Industrial Estate on Hermitage Road is 
£655,000.  This will be met in full by the Council using external funding sources 
achieved through bidding to the GLA and DCLG. The capital cost is to be 
financed by £430,000 from the GLA‟s Good Growth Fund if sucessful and 
£225,000 LB Haringey‟s New Home Bonus (economic development top-slice 
funding) entitlement from the Department for Communities & Local Government 
(DCLG) and has already been approved for this use by the GLA, which 
oversees the government‟s NHB deployment by London boroughs.   
 

2.  Cabinet Member Introduction 
 

N/A 
 

3.  Recommendations  
 
     It is recommended that the Leader: 
 

3.1  Give delegated authority to the interim Strategic Director for Regeneration, 
Planning and Development, after consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Economic Development, Social Inclusion and Sustainability and the Council‟s 
s151 Officer in order to: 

 
(i) enter into a Good Growth Fund grant agreement with the GLA upon terms as 
may be set out in the GLA grant Agreement; and 

   
(ii) enter into a grant agreement with Fashion Enter in respect of total capital 
funding of £655,000, using £430,000 of Good Growth Fund monies received 
from the GLA and £225,000 of the Council‟s New Homes Bonus funds in order 
create the Tailoring Academy in Haringey and to deliver jobs, training and 
apprenticeships for residents of the borough and more widely across London. 
This is on condition that any agreement with Fashion Enter will  be subject to 
compliance with state aid requirements as well as all GLA funding conditions. 

 
 
 
 

4.  Reasons for Decision  
 

Page 2



 

Page 3 of 10  

4.1 The primary reason for the decision is to help realise the Council‟s objective of 
creating jobs and skills in the local and London clothing sector, this being a 
priority sector of the local economy identified in the Council‟s Corporate Plan 
and economic development strategy.  The project will realise opportunities for 
Haringey residents to enter into formal training and progress into employment in 
the industry, the project being supported by major employers in the clothing 
sector including Savile Row tailors and major high street fashion companies.   
The high quality of the employment will help improve wage and career 
progression in what has traditionally been a low paying and low skilled industry. 
The project will set a benchmark for other training intiatives in the sector and 
help improve its image and retention of staff. There is also an expection that the 
project will attract further investment from clothing firms in Haringey and in 
London as a whole, creating a cluster of firms and improving investment in 
technology.  

 
4.2 The decision is needed now, rather than later, because in approving its funding 

the GLA requires agreement with the Council on its use by the end of March 
2018. In addition, the decision is required in order for the capital works 
component of the Tailoring Academy project to be started in April 2018.  This is 
so that the delivery partner, Fashion Enter, can begin delivering its jobs, 
apprentices and job training outputs from the scheduled date of November 2018 
which it has agreed with the revenue funding partners and training 
organisations. The 100 apprenticeships to be delivered by the Tailoring 
Academy are already lined up with the employers and require the apprentices 
to be ready for placement from November 2018. 
 

5.  Alternative Options Considered 
 
5.1 The Council could have chosen not to bid for the GLA funding to help establish 

the Tailoring Academy with Fashion Enter.  However, this was discounted for a 
number of reasons:  

 
(i) The Council would have forfeited the chance  for significant external 

funding to deliver a project which would provide jobs and specialist and 
in-demand job skills for the borough‟s economy and Clothing & Fashion 
sector 

 
(ii) The Council would not have capitalised on a major private sector funding 

opportunity which would help deliver a key component of the Haringey 
Economic Development & Growth Strategy and Corporate Plan. 

 

6. Background Information 
 
6.1 Haringey Clothing and Fashion sector 
 
6.1.1 Clothing and Fashion (C&F) is an important sector in Haringey employing over 

3,000 people, mainly in the East of the borough.  Haringey has a long history of 

clothing manufacturing, particularly in Tottenham and Wood Green.  Despite the 

decline in the UK clothing manufacturing sector and out-sourcing of production 

to low cost countries, Haringey retains a sizable clothing sector. 

 

Page 3



 

Page 4 of 10  

6.1.2 Within North and East London‟s fashion industry, Haringey has successfully re-

established its distinct role as a leading borough for clothing manufacturing. A 

recent GLA study found that Haringey‟s fashion manufacturing sector 

outperformed all other East and North London boroughs between 2010 and 

2015 by adding 1,065 jobs, a 136% increase1. 

 

6.1.3 Haringey is home to a number of innovative Clothing & Fashion (C&F) 

manufacturing companies that supply major national and international retailers 

and fashion brands. Such companies include Fashion Enter, Gina Shoes, 

Kashket, Albion Knitting, and Cannon Street Jersey Fabrics, among others.  

 

6.1.4 As a result of this sectoral strength, the Haringey Economic Development and 

Growth Strategy has identified the Clothing and Fashion industry as one of the 

key priority sectors to support growth and job creation in the borough.  

6.1.5 To help consolidate and support the growth of the sector, the LBH Economic 
Development & Growth Team has led on the work to support this local industry.  
This work has included working with regional partners such as the Department 
for International Trade to promote and secure overseas trade and contract 
opportunities for local C&F firms. 
 

6.1.6 However, the local and regional clothing and fashion sector faces a number of 
well-documented barriers and challenges2 which hinder this sector from growing 
even faster and generating more jobs into the local economy. 

 

6.1.7 One of the major barriers facing Haringey and the wider London clothing & 

fashion sector, is the skills shortage across manufacturing roles, particularly 

NVQ levels 4, 5, 6 and higher level apprenticeships, as well as specialist 

tailoring skills. 

 

6.1.8 The skills shortage is attributed to an aging workforce which is not replaced 

when people retire or leave and because young people are not considering 

clothing manufacturing as an attractive career path, due to perception of poor 

working conditions and pay. This skills shortage is preventing fashion 

manufacturers from scaling-up production, supplying new buyers, and 

exporting3. In addition, it is making it harder for manufacturers to recruit new 

skilled staff, while the small scale of most fashion manufacturers has made it 

unviable to upskill existing staff4. 

 

The Tailoring Academy 
 

                                        
1
 East London Fashion Cluster (2016) Scenario Planning, p.6 

2
 GLA (2016) - East London Fashion Cluster; UK  Fashion & Textile (2016) – London Manufacturing Manifesto; 

British Fashion Council (2016) – High End & Design  Manufacturing 
3
 UKFT (2016) London Manufacturers Manifesto 

4
 The Alliance Project Team (2015) Repatriation of UK Textiles Manufacture: A Report for The Greater 

Manchester Combined Authority, p.62 

Page 4



 

Page 5 of 10  

6.1.10 The Tailoring Academy will involve the refurbishment of a 1,050 square metre 

industrial unit into an advanced clothing manufacturing and training facility at 

Crusader Industrial Estate, a clothing and fashion cluster in the N4 part of 

Haringey where Fashion Enter and a number of leading clothing companies are 

based. 

 

6.1.11 The requested GLA Good Growth Funding is to help advanced machinery, 

equipment and training facilities for a training and clothing manufacturing 

facility, which will provide specialist skills and job training in the clothing 

manufacturing and fashion sector – as well producing mid-end and high-end 

tailored clothing for major retailers and fashion brands.  

 

6.1.12 The Tailoring Academy will enable Fashion Enter to pioneer the use of mass-

production methods in the manufacture of tailored goods and make it the only 

mass-manufacturer of tailored goods in the UK. 

 
6.1.13 The Tailoring Academy will therefore help address the skills gaps highlighted 

above by: 
  

(i) Providing a state-of-art clothing manufacturing and training facility which 
will provide specialist skills and job training in the clothing manufacturing 
and fashion sector. 

 
(ii) Enabling Fashion Enter, a successful social enterprise in the local 

clothing manufacturing and training sector, to train young people in an 
industry and in a specialism that has been relint for its workforce on 
people from elsewhere in the EU.  The Tailoring Academy will therefore 
increase the resilience of the local fashion-manufacturing sector during 
this period of Brexit uncertainty.  

 
Forecast Outputs and Outcome for the Tailoring Academy 
 
6.1.14  If the GLA funding bid is successful and the project is implemented, the 

Tailoring Academy is forecast to deliver the following outputs and outcomes: 
 

 552 jobs created/safeguarded - comprising: 
 
- 50 new jobs created directly by Fashion Enter as a result of the setting up 
of the Tailoring Academy 

 
- 502 jobs to be created/safeguarded in Haringey by the borough‟s clothing 
related and maufacturing sector engaging in the project directly or indirectly 
 

 100 level 5 apprenticeships delivered under a contract with the 
internationally renowned Savile Row (Tailors) Bespoke Association  
 

 2,090 training places offered per year through the Tailoring Academy, 
consisting of:  

- 630 accredited apprenticeships, with 280 at level 1, 280 at level 2, 40 at 
level 3,and 30 at levels 4-6  

Page 5



 

Page 6 of 10  

- 545 per year achieving accredited qualifications 

- 502 trainees/learners progressing to work 
- Non-accredited courses for 1,300 individuals  

 
6.2 Fashion Enter 
  
6.2.1 Our partner for this project is Fashion Enter, London‟s leading clothing design, 

manufacturing and training social enterprise (a company which reinvests any 
profit back into its social objectives).  Fashion Enter manufactures up to 10,000 
garments a week and supplies to M&S, John Lewis, ASOS, and Finery among 
other national clients.  It currently employs 107 people and provides over 1,600 
training places per year. Fashion Enter also has a number of subsidiary 
companies including Fashion Technology Academy and Sampling Studios. It 
has its own brand called „Belles of London‟ and works with a number of London-
based designers. 

 
6.2.2 Fashion Enter is the Council‟s long-standing strategic partner for delivering 

apprenticeships and job and vocational training in the clothing and fashion 
industry.  The organisation is an integral part of the borough‟s job training and 
apprentice infrastructure.  In 2014 the Council invested in and helped set up the 
Fashion Technology Academy, to give more than 200 people a year the 
opportunity to work in paid apprenticeships and gain highly sought-after 
professional qualifications in the fashion industry.  This has been a successful 
project. 

 
6.2.3 The proposed LB Haringey investment in the Tailoring Academy is part of the 

Council‟s on-going strategy of developing the local employment, training 
infrastructure and strengthening the capacity of the local strategic partner to 
address a major skills gap in the local clothing and fashion sector.  The 
Tailoring Academy project was developed in partnership with Fashion Enter 

 
6.2.4 Fashion Enter is led by founder and CEO Jenny Holloway.  Jenny has 30 years 

of experience in the fashion industry as a buyer, a director, and an industry 
advisor to the UK government. 

 
6.2.5 Fashion Enter has won a number of awards including Evening Standard SME of 

the Year (2017); Ernst Young award, the EEF Future Manufacturing award and 
„Fashion‟s Finest‟ Special Recognition award. In addition, they were recently 
awarded the prestigious Savile Row training contract - training and providing 
highly skilled workers for the world‟s best tailors and iconic clothing brands. 

 
6.2.6 Fashion Enter is recognised by the industry as a centre of excellence for 

sampling, grading, and production and for learning and development of skills 
within the fashion and textiles industry. 

 
6.3 Funding 
 
6.3.1  On 5 January 2018, following a successful Stage 1 application, LB Haringey 

submitted a Stage 2/Final bid to the GLA Good Growth Fund, to  help establish 
a Tailoring Academy in the borough. The Good Growth Fund is the Mayor of 
London/GLA‟s new capital funding programme for projects which aims to deliver 

Page 6



 

Page 7 of 10  

regeneration and economic development in local areas.  The GLA will be 
notifying successful applicants early March 2018. Before submission to the 
GLA, the bid was approved by the Council‟s P4 Strategy and Operational 
Boards and signed off by the Executive Director of Regeneration, Planning and 
Development. 

 
7. Contribution to Strategic Outcomes 
 
7.1 Through the jobs, skills & employment, training and sector support, which the 

Tailoring Academy will deliver, the project will directly contribute to delivering 
the LB Haringey Corporate Plan Priority 4: 
 

 Objective 2: “Deliver growth by creating an environment that supports 
investment and growth in business and jobs” 

 

 Objective 3: “Take advantage of growth, by ensuring that residents have the 
training, skills and support necessary to find and keep good-quality 
employment” 

 
7.2 In addition, the Tailoring Academy will help deliver the Haringey Economic 

Development and Growth Strategy which has identified the Clothing and 
Fashion industry as one of the key priority sectors to support growth and job 
creation in the borough. 

 
8. Statutory Officers Comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 

procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 

8.1 Finance 
 
8.1.1 This report seeks approval to allocate £655,000 capital fund to facilitate the 

purchase of machinery and refurbishment works for the Tailoring Academy. 
 
8.1.2 This is made up of £430,000 Good Growth Fund bid awaiting GLA‟s approval 

and Council‟s match funding of £225,000. 
 
8.1.3  The match funding will be met from the underspend in the New Home Bonus 

fund; already agreed with GLA.  
 
8.1.4 The estimated total cost of the delivering the Tailoring Academy is £1,210,000. 

This consists of £655,000 for capital work and £555,000 for skills, training, rents 
and other revenue costs. The sources of funding is as shown below: 

 
Estimated Capital cost of the Tailoring Academy   £655,000 
Funded by: 
LBH GLA                                               £430,000 
LBH NHB                            £225,000 

  
 Estimated Revenue cost of the Tailoring Academy   £555,000 

Funded by: 
 Private Sector Partners      £555,000 
 

Page 7



 

Page 8 of 10  

8.1.5   The cost to the Council has been included within the capital programme for 
2018/19, subject to agreement by Council at its budget setting meeting. 

 
8.2 Legal 
 
8.2.1 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance notes the contents of the 

report. 
 
8.2.2 By virtue of the provisions of CSO 17.1, the Council may enter into a grant 

agreement to receive grant from an external body in accordance with the 
provisions of CSO 9.07. In accordance with the provisions of CSO 9.07.1(c), a 
Director may approve the receipt of a grant valued at less than £500,000. The 
Leader can therefore approve the receipt of the grant as well as approve the 
entering into the agreement for the receipt of the grant. 

 
8.2.3  The recommendation in paragraph 3(1)(ii) for a grant of the sum of £655,000 to 

Fashion Enter by the Council may raise some state aid issue as Fashion Enter 
appears to be an company that is commercially active in the market and unless 
this grant can be classed into one of the accepted state aid exemptions, the 
grant may be subject to claw back in future.  The approval of the grant to, and 
the entering into any agreement with, Fashion Enter therefore should be subject 
to compliance with state aid requirements as well as all GLA funding conditions. 

 
8.2.4 In the light of paragraphs 8.2.2 and 8.2.3 above: 
 

(i) the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance sees no legal reasons  
preventing the Leader from approving the recommendations in paragraph 
3(1)(i) to receive the grant and to enter into a grant agreement with GLA. 
 
(ii) the approval of the recommendation in paragraph 3(1)(ii) for the grant of the 
sum of ££655,000 and the entering into an agreement with Fashion Enter 
should be given subject to to the following condition: 
 
(a) Compliance of the grant with state aid requirements and all GLA grant funding 

conditions. 

 
8.3 Equality 
 
8.3.1 The Council has a public sector equality duty under the Equality Act (2010) to 

have due regard to: 
 

• tackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share the 
characteristics protected under S4 of the Act. These include the 
characteristics of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex (formerly 
gender) and sexual orientation; 
 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share those protected 
characteristics and people who do not; 

 

Page 8



 

Page 9 of 10  

• foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and 
people who do not.  

 
8.3.2 Not only will the Tailoring Academy help the Council deliver some of these 

duties, the Academy will also have significant impact on the job training, 
vocational qualification and employment prospects of the borough‟s 
disadvantaged residents –particularly under-qualified, under-skilled and 
unemployment BAME, Women as well as Disabled people. 

 
8.3.3 Through a range of measures including setting of equality targets and 

collaboration of  HEST (Haringey Employment and Skills Training), the LBH will 
work with Fashion Enter to ensure that the Tailoring Academy  builds on the 
company‟s excellent record of employing large numbers of Women, BAME and 
Disabled workers: 

 
(i) BAME residents in Haringey are less likely that White British resident to 

be in employment or have NVQ+ level qualificationi . At the same time, 
people from BAME communities  are over-represented in the clothing 
and fashion manufacturing sector‟s workforce 

The LBH with work with the Fashion Enter to ensure that the company 
continues with its proactive employment, training and recruitment policies 
towards the local BAME communities – to ensure that they are equipped 
with the high level skills and job opportunities to secure well-paid jobs in 
the Tailoring Academy as well as the wider London clothing and fashion 
sector 

 
(i) Women are over-represented in the clothing and fashion-manufacturing 

sector‟s workforce. However, a large proportion of the local women do 
not have the high level skills (particularly NVQ levels 4, 5, 6 as well as 
tailoring skills) – to secure well-paid jobs with the major retailers and 
fashion brands. The Tailoring  Academy will provide them with the higher 
level skills and experience to secure higher paid jobs with major clothing 
companies 
 

(ii) Disabled people: Fashion Enter has a specific policy of employing 
disabled people and currently employs 10 former REMPLOY disabled 
workers. The Tailoring Academy will build on this proactive employment 
policy by working with local and regional organisations working with 
Disabled people – to recruit and train and/or employ disabled people into 
appropriate roles. It is estimated that at least two disabled workers will be 
employed in the Tailoring Academy. 

 
9. Use of Appendices 

 
N/A 
 

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
10.1 A Cabinet resolution of 15th July 2014 authorised the Director of Regeneration, 

Planning and Development to enter into a lease arrangement and a funding 
agreement totalling £539,864 with Fashion Enter in respect of a Fashion 

Page 9



 

Page 10 of 10  

Technology Academy at Fashion Enter‟s premises on Hermitage Road.  
Fashion Enter has satisfied the terms of that agreement and has completed that 
project.  Minutes of this cabinet item can be found on the Council website at: 

 
 http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=38369  

 
 
 
 
 
 

                                        
i  Jobs and job density (2017), London Datastore 

Page 10

http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=38369


 

Page 1 of 7  

 

 
Report for:  Leader’s  Signing 15th March 2018 
 
 

Title: Reallocation of funds agreed by Cabinet in 2012 to enable urgent 
highways improvements required ahead of the opening of the new 
THFC stadium.   

 
Report  
authorised by :  Peter O’Brien, Assistant Director – Area Regeneration  
 
Lead Officer: Ed Richards, Head of Area Regeneration (North Tottenham East) 
 020 8489 2760 edward.richards@haringey.gov.uk  
 
Ward(s) affected: Northumberland Park, Tottenham Hale 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Key Decision  
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 
1.1 In February 2012 Cabinet agreed to contribute £500,000 towards public realm 

improvements on Worcester Avenue. This money has not yet been allocated 
and will not be until Tottenham Hotspur (THFC) are in a position to lay 
permanent surfaces and finishes once the majority of construction in and 
around the stadium has finished. Meanwhile, a number of additional highways 
and transport related priority issues have been identified which the Council will 
need to resolve ahead of the new stadium opening. This report proposes using 
a proportion of £500,000 already allocated to fund these works. THFC will still 
be required to complete the Worcester Avenue work through their own funds 
and the remainder of the £500,000 committed, with no further funds being 
provided by the Council. This will be guaranteed through stipulations contained 
within a section 278 agreement for Worcester Avenue.   

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 
2.1      As I stated in the 2012 Cabinet report, promoting the regeneration of  

Tottenham is a priority for the Council. The redevelopment of the Tottenham 
Hotspur stadium was an integral part of these plans and I am excited to see the 
stadium nearing completion. This will be complemented by the Council’s High 
Road West scheme which is now entering the delivery phase after the 
development agreement with Lendlease was signed on 20th December 2017. 
The transformational change that such large scale investment in north 
Tottenham brings will benefit new and existing residents, businesses and the 
62,000 spectators who will regularly attend events at the new stadium, including 
the exciting prospect of the NFL basing itself in Tottenham.  

 
2.2     This increased number of spectators presents a fantastic opportunity for the  

local community to benefit through visitors spending money in local businesses 
and inward investment as a result of Tottenham’s international profile. Inevitably 

Page 11 Agenda Item 5



 

Page 2 of 7  

such a large number of people also puts pressure on local infrastructure, 
particularly our roads, pavements and public transport provision. In partnership 
with TFL and the GLA we are upgrading many of the transport hubs which 
serve the stadium so that not only does it provide a more enjoyable matchday 
experience but also that our residents benefit from significantly improved 
transport links on a non-matchday. This helps increase access to jobs and bring 
further investment to the area. We have also upgraded much of our highways 
network and contributed towards the public realm improvements THFC are 
delivering as part of the stadium redevelopment.  

 
2.3      As one would expect with such largescale schemes it is inevitable that new  

requirements appear as development progresses. I am therefore satisfied by 
the requirement to utilise money currently being held for Worcester Avenue for 
more urgent highways and transport improvements that are needed in time for 
the opening of the new stadium. I am particularly pleased to see that agreement 
has been reached with THFC so that by reallocating this funding, no additional 
costs will be borne by the Council when the permanent improvements are 
delivered to Worcester Avenue once development in and around the road have 
been completed.  
 

3. Recommendations  
 
3.1 It is recommended that the Leader approves:  

a)  the reallocation of £211,937.48 plus 15% contingency (equating to 
a maximum of £243,728.10) from the £500,000 committed by 
Cabinet in February 2012 for improvements to Worcester Avenue, 
to cover urgent highways and transport works required to mitigate 
against the large volume of spectators visiting the new THFC 
stadium from August 2018 to be carried out as highway works 
pursuant to the 2016 S106 agreement.   

 
b) the remainder of the £500,000 continues to be held until THFC 

are in a position to install a permanent surface and fixtures to 
Worcester Avenue.  

 
c) that, where agreed with THFC, any additional work required for 

similar improvements can also be funded from this sum until the 
£500,000 ceiling has been reached.  

 
d) that the Section 278 agreement relating to Worcester Avenue 

stipulates a requirement for THFC to complete the work to 
Worcester Avenue in line with the February 2012 Cabinet 
agreement without any additional funding (beyond any remaining 
funds from the original £500,000 allocated) being provided by the 
Council.  

 
4. Reasons for decision  
 
4.1 In February 2012 a package of funding for north Tottenham was agreed which 

included a financial contribution of £8.5m towards the Northumberland 
Development Project (a stadium led regeneration scheme delivered by THFC). 

Page 12



 

Page 3 of 7  

This contribution covered contributions towards public realm and heritage 
improvements as well as £0.5m towards improvements to Worcester Avenue.  

 
4.2 Due to the large volume of construction on and around Worcester Avenue both 

now and in the future, THFC do not intend to install permanent surfaces or 
finishes to the road until a much later date. The Council has therefore retained 
this £500,000, for release once THFC are in a position to carry out the 
permanent works.  

 
4.3 Through the preparation of the Local Area Management Plan (LAMP), THFC 

and officers from the Council have identified that some additional highways and 
transport improvements are required ahead of the opening of the new stadium 
in August 2018. The total cost of these works equates to £215,937.48 
(£243,728.10 including 15% contingency) and will be carried out as highways 
works pursuant to the S106 agreement as per the following table:  

 Works Work Cost Contingency 
(15%) 

Estimated 
Cost 

Comment 

1 Relocation of 
bus shelter 

£9,231.23 £1,384.68 £10,615.91 Bus stop to be 
relocated to allow 
implementation of 
one of the signalled 
pedestrian crossings 
outside stadium. Cost 
of removing old 
shelter and installing 
a new shelter is 
£9231.23. The cost 
of relocating the old 
shelter is £373.25. 

2 Removal of 
High Road 
speed table 

£4,000.00 £600.00 £4,600.00 Removal of High 
Road speed table for 
the relocation of 
northbound bus stop.  

3 Relocation of 
Thames Water 
meter pillars at 
the junction of 
High Road / 
Park Lane 

£18,106.25 £2,715.94 £20,822.19 Thames Water pillars 
need to be relocated 
to put in the new 
radius kerbs and 
complete the new 
junction layout.  

4 Northumberland 
Park east bus 
diversion route 

£144,600.00 £21,690.00 £166,290.00 Cost for creating 
footway parking to 
widen the 
carriageway width to 
allow two buses to 
pass.  

5 Change of Hale 
CPZ to include 
Event Days 

£25,000.00 £3,750.00 £28,750.00 Hale CPZ is near 
Tottenham Hale and 
has no Event Day 
controls. This is 
associated with the 
increased capacity of 

Page 13



 

Page 4 of 7  

the stadium.  

6 Relocation of 
TFL signals 
control box 

£15,000.00 £2,250.00 £17,250.00 THFC would like the 
controller relocated to 
the other side of Park 
Lane, opposite the 
stadium. Awaiting 
estimate from TFL.  

 Totals £215,937.48 £32,390.62 £248,328.10  

 
 
4.4 In order to fund these works with no additional financial burden to the Council, it 

is proposed that it is funded out of the £500,000 currently being held for 
Worcester Avenue.  

 
4.5 To ensure that the Council is not required to contribute further money towards 

Worcester Avenue at the point THFC carry out the improvement work, the 
section 278 agreement for Worcester Avenue, which primarily relates to the 
management of the road, will include a clear stipulation that THFC complete a 
permanent surface and fixtures to Worcester Avenue in line with the original 
February 2012 Cabinet agreement. This will be solely through their own funds 
with the Council contribution equating only to what remains of the £500,000 
after the improvement work specified in 4.3 above has been completed.  

 
4.6 Whilst the proposal in this report does not incur any additional financial burden 

to the Council nor prevent the completion of any works previously agreed with 
THFC, a Decision report is required as it represents a variation from the funding 
strategy specified in the February 2012 Cabinet report.   

 
5. Alternative options considered 

 
5.1 Option 1: Fund the highways and transport improvements through other 

budgets: The Council could decide to use an alternative Council budget to fund 
the require works. This would incur additional cost to the Council with a 
detrimental impact on other planned highways/transport improvements. As 
THFC and Council officers have reached agreement to progress as outlined in 
section 4 above there is no justiafiable reason for incurring additional expense 
on the Council or failing to carry out much needed improvements work 
elsewhere in the borough.  

 
5.2 Require THFC to provide funding for the cost of the highways and transport 

improvement works now: Through the S106 agreement, highway works to the 
value of £1.86m are to be carried out by the Council. Legal have confirmed that 
as the £500,000 for Worcester Avenue is yet to be spent it may not count 
towards the £1.86m figure until the work has been completed. The Council are 
therefore not yet in a position to require THFC to contribute any additional 
funds. Even if the Council were to do so this would not save the Council any 
money as THFC would then be able to draw down the full £500,000 once they 
deliver a permanent surface and fixtures to Worcester Avenue. As the 
arrangement described in section 4 above explains, the proposal contained 
within this report would see the Council’s contribution towards Worcester 
Avenue reduce by the amount spent on these highways and transport 

Page 14



 

Page 5 of 7  

improvements. There is therefore no benefit in the Council trying to demand 
that THFC cover the cost of the work now.  

 
6. Background information 

 
6.1 In February 2012 the Council approved a further allocation of £5m to make a 

total of £9m investment in North Tottenham (linking with the Mayoral investment 
of £18m) to support:  

  

 A contribution to heritage building improvements in the vicinity of the 
NDP Scheme (£3m) 

 A contribution to public and community event space to be provided as 
part of the NDP Scheme (£5m) 

 Environmental improvements on Worcester Avenue (£0.5m) [It is this 
bullet point that relates to the recommendations contained within this 
report] 

 The formulation of a phased North Tottenham regeneration master-plan 
with a primary focus on the area west of High Road centred on White 
Hart Lane (£0.5m) 

 
6.2 Work has commenced on the THFC stadium and it is due for completion in 

August 2018, at which point up to 62,000 spectators will attend events on a 
regular basis.  

 
6.3 In line with the S106 agreement, THFC have been working on a Local Area 

Management Plan (LAMP) which covers everything relating to getting 
spectators to and from the stadium on event days. Council officers have been 
working closely alongside THFC to develop this document.  

 
6.4 As the LAMP has developed various potential issues have been highlighted 

with appropriate mitigation being sought. This has included identifying where 
additional highways or transport related work is absolutely required if the 
smooth running of traffic and pedestrian management plans is to be realised. 
The total cost of these required works is outlined in point 4.3 above.  

 
6.5 Officers have confirmed that this work is required and have sought legal advice 

on how this could be funded. Off the back of this legal advice and through 
discussion with THFC it has been mutually agreed for the work to be funded 
from the £500,000 currently being held until THFC complete permanent works 
to Worcester Avenue.  

 
6.6 As this will be a deviation away from the original intended usage of the 

£500,000 a Cabinet Member Signing is required.  
 
7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 

 
7.1 The proposal outlined in the report contributes to Priority 4 - Sustainable 

Housing, Growth and Employment and Priority 5 - Create homes and 
communities where people choose to live and are able to thrive 

 

Page 15



 

Page 6 of 7  

7.2 Regular events bringing over 60,000 visitors to the borough will bring benefits to 
the local economy through consumer spend and inward investment.  

 
7.3 The stadium development will deliver improvements to public realm and 

heritage buildings in north Tottenham which, alongside the Council’s own 
regeneration schemes will bring transformational change to north Tottenham 
benefitting existing and new residents, businesses and visitors to the area.  

 
7.4 Inevitably, such a volume of visitors does put strain on local infrastructure 

including highways, train/tube stations, buses and pedestrian routes. The 
improvements covered by this report will mitigate against some of this impact, 
ensuring that residents, visitors and those passing through Tottenham suffer the 
minimum level of disruption.  
 

8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 
Finance  

8.1  Currently the funding for this project is contained with scheme 419 - NPD Phase 
2 LBH Match Funding with a budget of £540,000. Actual expenditure of £28,000 
has been incurred as at period 10 with further planned expenditure of £12,000 
to the end of 2017/18. This means that there is uncommitted funding of 
£500,000 available which is sufficient to undertake the maximum amount of 
expenditure proposed by this report, £215,937.48 plus a contingency of 
£32,390.62 giving a total of £248,328.10 
 

8.2  It will be essential that for the residual works that the Council’s financial 
exposure is capped at £251,671 via the mechanism outlined in this report.  
 
Procurement 

8.3  Not required 
 

Legal 
 

8.4 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has reviewed and noted this 
report. In particular that it is only required to change the use of the £500,000 to 
a different highway purpose from that envisaged by the Cabinet 
recommendation in 2012. The works outlined in paragraph 4.3 above will still be 
conducted by the Council as part of the 2016 section 106 agreement’s highway 
works, counting towards the total £1.86million sum to be spent on such highway 
works. The Worcester Avenue works originally intended to be part of the section 
106 agreement’s highway works and to be funded by the £500,000 approved by 
Cabinet in 2012 will now be undertaken by THFC pursuant to a section 278 
agreement. 
 

 Equality 
8.5 The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to 

have due regard to the need to: 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited under the Act 

Page 16



 

Page 7 of 7  

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those 
protected characteristics and people who do not 

 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics 
and people who do not.  

8.6 The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: 
age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, 
sex and sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the 
first part of the duty. 

 
8.7 The decision will enable highways and transport improvements to take place in 

advance of the new THFC stadium opening in August 2018. The aim of the 
works is to ensure that local residents and stadium attendees are able to make 
use of an enhanced public realm, particularly on days when there is a match at 
the stadium. Any successful contractor for the improvement works will be 
expected to adhere to equalities considerations, including ease of accessibility 
to the public realm for elderly, disabled, and pushchairs. 

 
9. Use of Appendices 

 
None 

 

 
10.  Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  

 
Cabinet Report – Funding and Investment Package for the Tottenham 
Regeneration Programme – 7 February 2012 
(https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=5356) N/A 

 
 

 

Page 17

https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=5356


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Tailoring Academy/Fashion Enter Good Growth Funding
	5 Reallocation of funds agreed by Cabinet in 2012 to enable urgent highways improvements required ahead of the opening of the new THFC stadium.

